DSDA iSCSI Disk Array Series

DSA-S5B50 | DSA-N2B20 | DSA-N2B50



en Installation Guide

Download from Www.Somanuals.com. All Manuals Search And Download.

Table of Contents

1	Precautions	3
2	Introduction	4
2.1	Systems at a Glance	4
3	Unpacking and Installing the Hardware	6
4	Delivery Status	7
5	Configuration through the Web Interface	8
5.1	Configuration of the Network Settings and Access to the Interface	8
5.2	Time and Date Settings	11
5.3	Configuring the Volume	12
5.4	Creating an Initiator Group	14
5.5	Creating LUNs	14
6	Adding Storage	17
6.1	Installing a Shelf	17
7	Monitoring and Maintenance	23
7.1	Monitoring the System	23
7.2	Maintenance	24
7.3	Hardware Troubleshooting	26
7.4	Software Update	28
7.5	Disk Identification	30
8		31
8.1	Technical Specifications DSA-S5B50	31
8.2	Technical Specifications DSA-N2B20	32
8.3	Technical Specifications DSA-N2B50	33
8.4	Technical Specifications Disk Shelf Expansion Unit –DSX-N2X00-14AT	34
9	Trademarks	35

1

Precautions

- The system is heavy even without disks installed. At least two people are required to install the system.
- The rack cabinet into which this system will be installed must support overcurrent protection and must not be overloaded by the modules installed. Other requirements, such as ventilation airflow, rack stabilizing features, electrical earth, and electrical distribution, must comply with the technical specifications listed in *Section 8 Technical Data*, page 31 and in the documentation that came with this product.
- All systems must be mounted with and supported by the rails provided and secured in position by the four screws in the front side flanges. In no instance is a system to be mounted by the front side flanges only as this will result in the deforming of the systems chassis causing unacceptably high pressures and/or torques to be applied to internal components resulting in various failure modes.
- System Integrators should ensure that any integrated storage solution that includes this product has been tested and proved to meet government regulations and codes for subjects including safety, fire, and electrical.
- Make sure you have a soft, clean surface to place your system before working on it.
 Placing the system on a rough surface during servicing may damage the chassis finish.
- Do not remove any module or component item from its anti-static bag until you are ready to install it. Pick up and hold modules by their edges or canister. Avoid touching PCBs and connector pins.
- Observe all standard ESD prevention methods, e.g., wear an anti-static wristband to prevent static electricity from damaging the electric components.
- When replacing components insert them as gently as possible while assuring full engagement. Vibration or shock can damage hard drives in the affected unit or other units in the rack. Hard drives are very sensitive to shock and vibration, especially while in operation and should always be handled very carefully.
- After all equipment is installed in a rack dress the power and data cables such that power cables are not resting against data (SCSI, IP, RS-232) cables.

2 Introduction

This guide explains the installation of the digital storage systems of type

- DSA-S5B50
- DSA-N2B20
- DSA-N2B50

for either direct storage of recorded video data or for use with the VRM Video Recording Manager application.

Additional documentation is available on the internet and can be downloaded from **www.boschsecurity.com** under **Product Catalog** > **CCTV** > **IP Video** > **Disk Arrays**.

2.1 Systems at a Glance

DSA-S5B50	DSA-N2B20	DSA-N2B50
12 / 6 disks, 1 TB each	12 disks, 750 GB each	20 disks, 750 GB each
	shelf expansion units available with 14 disks (750 GB) each	shelf expansion units available with 14 disks (750 GB) each
RAID-4 RAID-DP optionally configurable	RAID-DP	RAID-DP

2.1.1 Hardware Overview

Example overview (DSA-N2B20):



Example front side (DSA-N2B20):



Example rear side (DSA-N2B20):



Expansion unit - disk shelf: Front side



2.1.2 CCTV Integration

Example for installation without VRM:



Bosch Security Systems

3

Unpacking and Installing the Hardware

NOTICE!

For more detailed information on the hardware installation please refer to the documentation available on **www.boschsecurity.com** under **Product Catalog** > **CCTV** > **IP Video** > **Disk Arrays**.



WARNING!

The storage system is heavy. Two people are required to lift a system.



CAUTION!

Only use the rail kit supplied with the system. Using a different rail kit can cause injury to you or damage to your system.

- 1. Unpack your system by opening the packing box and lifting the outer shipping box off the pallet.
- 2. Install the appropriate rack mount for your installation and system using the Rack Installation flyer in the rail kit box for reference.
- 3. Install the appropriate rack mount for any disk shelves that will be connected to the system
- 4. With two people, lift the system into the rack or system cabinet, and secure it to the rack uprights. The system weighs slightly over 30 kg (67 lb) and requires one person at the end of the system to guide it into the rail ends.
- 5. For installation and wiring of additional disk shelves, see *Section 6 Adding Storage*, page 17.
- Connect the power cords, making sure that the power supplies are connected to separate AC power sources. This ensures redundant power sources. Make sure to set the power cable retention clips properly.



Ensure that power supply LEDs are lit.

4 Delivery Status

For use with the VRM Video Recording Manager application or for direct recording from Bosch cameras and senders, the system should be configured following the steps in the next chapter.

Preconfigured settings upon delivery:

	DSA-S5B50	DSA-N2B20	DSA-N2B50
RAID type	RAID-4	RAID-DP	RAID-DP
Volume	vol0 with 2 disks	vol0 with 3 disks	vol0 with 3 disks
IP address	10.10.10.10	10.10.10.10	10.10.10.10
IP address (2nd port)	10.10.10.11	10.10.10.11	10.10.10.11
User (Web interface)	root	root	root
Password	<black></black>	<black></black>	<blank></blank>

All further configuration is done through the Web-based user interface or VRM 1.5 or higher. Each system is delivered with the preconfigured IP address 10.10.10.10 on Ethernet port e0a and IP address 10.10.10.11 on the second Ethernet port e0b. 5

Configuration through the Web Interface

NOTICE!

Do not use the S5B50 management software StoreVault Manager for the configuration. The DSA series come with a dedicated Bosch standardized system layout. StoreVault Manager is not compatible with the Bosch layout.

Follow these steps to configure each system. This procedure is nearly identical for all three types of storage systems.

1. Turn on the system.

DSA-S5B50: The power button is located on the front side on the left-hand side. DSA-N2B20 / DSA- N2B50 / additional disk shelves: There is a power switch on each

power supply unit (right- and left-hand side) on the rear side of the device.

If there are additional disk shelves installed, first power on the base unit, then power on the expansion units.



NOTICE!

It can take a few seconds until the LEDs on your system power supplies light up.

NOTICE!

The Java Runtime Environment must be installed on your computer in order to use the Web interface. Always use the most recent version.

5.1

Configuration of the Network Settings and Access to the Interface

All systems are delivered with a default IP address configuration of 10.10.10.10, netmask 255.0.0.0. In order to connect to the system, you need to configure a network interface on your computer to use the same network.

 Select from the Control Panel of your computer Network Connections, Properties. Here, configure your network interface to use IP address 10.10.10.9 with Subnet mask 255.0.0.0.

eneral	
You can get IP settings assigned his capability. Otherwise, you ne he appropriate IP settings.	automatically if your network supports ed to ask your network administrator for
ODbtain an IP address autom	atically
Ose the following IP address	s:
<u>I</u> P address:	10 . 10 . 10 . 9
S <u>u</u> bnet mask:	255 . 0 . 0 . 0
Default gateway:	94 30 40
Obtain DNS server address	automatically
💿 Use the following DNS serv	er addresses:
Preferred DNS server:	
Alternate DNS server:	
	Advanced



NOTICE!

The IP address 10.10.10.9 is an example. The IP addresses 10.10.10.10 and 10.10.10.11 are the default IP addresses for the storage system and cannot be used otherwise.

3. Connect your computer directly to the network port labeled **e0a** on the storage system, using a crossover cable.

Alternatively, connect your computer to the network the storage system is connected to.

Open a Web browser and enter http://10.10.10.10/na_admin.
 You will be asked to log in.

Enter **root** as the user name, leave the password blank.
 The FilerView start page loads and shows an overview on the system status.



6. Click the **FilerView** icon. This opens the FilerView administration interface in a new window. On the left-hand side of the FilerView interface, you will see the navigation panel.

For direct help on a specific topic, click one of the ?-buttons.



NOTICE!

FilerView is only available in English.

7. Select Network > Manage Interfaces.

🚰 http://10.10.10.10 - DSA-N2I	850: File	rView - Micro	osoft Internet Exp	lorer		
			00111100011	111100100100	Fil	erView [®]
Network Appliance*			30000 0000		lidddol[]]]]1989	Search <u>About</u>
■ DSA-N2B50 = ⑦ • Filer = ⑦ • Volumes = ⑦	▲ Netv	anage Ne vork → Manag	twork Inter e Interfaces	faces @		
• Aggregates 📑 ?		[Add a Nev	<u>v Virtual Interfac</u>	<u>ce]</u>	Show All Inte	rface Details]
Storage ⑦		[Add a	a New VLANJ			
• Uperations Manager (7)		Interface	Status	Address	Op	erations
Network ②		eOa	Up	10.10.10.10	Modify	Up <u>Down</u>
Report		eOb	Up	10.10.10.11	Modify	Up <u>Down</u>
Configure	=	lo	Up	127.0.0.1		
Manage Interfaces						
Add Virtual Interface				Refresh		
Manage Hosts File						
Manage Net Groups						
Configure Host Name Resolution (DNS & NIS)						
• Security ??						
• Secure Admin ?						
• NDMP 🕐						
• SNMP ⑦						
• Real Time Status 🕐	*					
ど Fertig					internet 🔮	.:

- 8. Click **Modify** next to the network interface labeled **e0a** and configured with IP address 10.10.10.10.
- Enter the IP address information for the network. Change IP Address and Netmask to the desired value. Leave Broadcast blank.

Example serveri.		
🕙 http://10.10.10.10 - DSA-N2B	50: FilerView - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Network Appliance		FilerView [®]
 DSA-N2B50 (*) ? Filer (*) ? Volumes (*) ? 	Modify Network Interface ③ Network → Modify Network Interface	
 Aggregates 🖶 ? Storage ? Operations Manages ? 	Interface: 🛛 Status: U	Jp Type: Ethernet
Operations Manager (*) HTTP (*) Notwork (*)	IP Address: Enter the IP address of this interface.	192.168.0.10
Report	Netmask: Enter the subnet mask for this interface.	255.255.255.0
Manage Interfaces Add Virtual Interface Manage Hosts File	Broadcast: Enter the Broadcast address of this interface. If left blank, the default is used. The current broadcast address is on.	0
Manage Net Groups Configure Host Name Resolution (DNS & NIS) • Security ⑦	Media Type: Choose the media type of this interface. Interface eOa is currently operating with a media type of 1000t-fd.	10/100/1000 Mbit Auto-negotiate 💙 🕐
Secure Admin ? NDMP ? SNMD ?	MTU size: Enter the MTU size (in bytes) for this interface. The default value is 1500.	1500
 SNMP () Real Time Status () Wiscole () 	Flowcontrol Select the flowcontrol value for this interface.	full 💙 ?
• vvizards (<i>g</i>)	Trusted: Check this box if you want this interface to be trusted.	✓ Trust ⑦
	Apply	Reset
Ertig		🥑 Internet

- 10. Set **Media Type** to **10/100/1000 Mbit Auto-negotiate**. Leave the **Trusted** option enabled.
- 11. Click **Apply** to confirm the changes. As this reconfigures the network interface you are connected to, the page will fail to load after clicking the **Apply** button.
- 12. Reset the network settings of your computer to its original settings or settings suitable for your CCTV network.
- Reconnect to the FilerView interface using the new IP address of the storage system. Enter http://<newIPaddress>/na_admin and log in using root as the user name and leaving the password blank.
- 14. On the FilerView start page click the **FilerView** icon to open the administration interface again.

5.2 Time and Date Settings

- 15. In the navigation panel, select Filer > Set Date/Time. The current date and time are displayed. If the time settings are incorrect, click Modify Date/Time. This starts the Date/Time Wizard. While the wizard guides you through the set-up, click Next to go to the next step. Click Cancel, if you do not want to continue the procedure.
- 16. From the list, select the **System Time Zone**. Click **Next**.
- 17. Set System Time Update Method to Manual. Click Next.
- 18. Enter the current time and date. Click Next.

 The changes are summarized on the Commit screen. Click Commit to apply the new settings.

NOTICE!

í

5.3

If you are using the VRM Video Recording Manager application (Version 1.5 or higher), all further settings are made through VRM.

If you use the digital storage systems for direct recording, continue with the following steps.

Configuring the Volume

The system is preconfigured with one volume that contains either two or three hard disks. You need to add the remaining disks of your system to the volume in order to use their capacity.

20. In the navigation panel, select **Volumes > Manage**.

The preconfigured volume, named vol0 , is listed.					
🗿 http://192.168.0.10 - DSA-N2B	50: FilerView - Microsoft Internet Explorer				
	FilerView®				
Network Appliance *					
	Search About				
DSA-N2B50 O	Manage Volumes ℗ Volumes → Manage				
Add Manage • Otrees 📑 ⑦	Filter by: All Volumes View				
• Quotas 📑 ?? • Snapshots ?	llame Status Root Containing FlexClone Avail Used Total Files MaxFiles Aggregate				
• Aggregates 📑 🕐	vol0 online,raid_dp ✓ - 475 GB 0% 475 GB 4.96 k 19.3 m				
 Storage (?) Operations Manager (?) 	Select All - Unselect All Online Restrict Offline Destroy				
• HTTP ⑦	Volumes: 1-1 of 1				
 Network (?) Security (?) 	Refresh				
Secure Admin ⑦					
• NDMP ⑦ • SNMP ⑦					
Real Time Status ⑦ Wizarda ②					
• WIZdius (F)					
🙆 Fertig	🧳 Internet				

- 21. Click **vol0** to display and change the properties of the volume.
- 22. Click Add Disks. This starts a wizard for adding disks to the existing volume.
- 23. Click Next on the welcome screen of the Volume Wizard.
- 24. Disk Selection: Check Automatic. Click Next.
- 25. Disk Size: Select Any Size. Click Next.
- 26. Number of Disks:
 - **DSA-S5B50**: Select the maximum number of disks available from the list. Click **Next**.
 - DSA-N2B20 / DSA-N2B50, no extension shelves: Select the maximum number of disks available from the list. Click Next.
 - DSA-N2B20 with extension shelves: Add 9 disks. Later on, create further volumes as described in Section 6.1.4 Adding New Volumes, page 19. Click Next.
 - DSA-N2B50 with extension shelves: Add 17 disks. Later on, create further volumes as described in Section 6.1.4 Adding New Volumes, page 19.
 Click Next.

27. The changes are summarized on the **Commit** screen.

Click **Commit** to apply the new settings.

By default, one disk is left as a spare disk. If no spare disk is needed, this disk can be added to the volume manually. To do so, please continue with step 28. If you would like to keep the spare disk, please continue with step 32.

- 28. In the navigation panel, select **Filer** > **Use Command Line**.
- 29. Enter **vol add vol0 1** (or replace vol0 with the volume to which you want to add the disk).

NetworkAppliance*	FilerView®
DSA-N2B50 ⑦ ⑦ Show Status Manage Licenses Report Syslog Messages Audit Logs Use Command Line Configure Syslog	Vse Command Line ⑦ Filer → Use Command Line connection open DSA-W22550> vol add vol0 1 Connect Disconnect Clear Copy/Paste
Applet fvapplet started	🧳 Internet

- A warning displays. Enter y (yes) to confirm the action.
 A message confirms that the disk has been added.
- 31. Click **Disconnect** to disconnect from the command line console.



CAUTION!

If the settings made here are altered later, all data stored on the disks is lost as the RAID group needs to be reconstructed.

5.4 Creating an Initiator Group

32. In the navigation panel, select LUNs > Initiator Groups > Add.

The Add Initiator Group screen displays.

🔮 http://192.168.0.10 - DSA-N2E	350: FilerView - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
Network Appliance*		FilerView [®]
 DSA-N2B50 Filer Volumes ? Aggregates ? Storage Operations Manager 	Add Initiator Group ⑦ LUNs → Initiator Groups → Add [Manage Initiator Groups] Group Name:	
HTTP ⑦ LUNs 🖥 ⑦ Wizard	Enter a group name for the initiator group. Type: Select a type for the initiator group.	ISCSI 🗸 🖉
Enable/Disable Manage	Operating System: Select the operating system type of the initiators in this group.	Linux 🗸 🖉
Auu Show Statistics LUN ConfigCheck • Initiator Groups ⑦ Manage Add	Initiators: Enter a list of initiator names, separated by commas, spaces, or newlines. For an FCP initiator group, enter WWPNs (world wide port names). For an iSCSI initiator group, enter iSCSI node names.	iqn.2005-12.com.bosch:unit0004630a9
• iSCSI 🕐		
Network ⑦ Security ⑦		Add
Applet fvapplet started		🔮 Internet

- 33. Group Name: Enter VRM_UNITIGROUP0.
- 34. Type: Select iSCSI.
- 35. Operating System: Select Linux.
- 36. **Initiators**: Enter the initiator names of all cameras and senders that shall write to this system.

The initiator name of a device is obtained from the Configuration Manager program.

There, select the device. Then, click the **iSCSI** tab. You can copy the iSCSI **Initiator name** to the clipboard.

Alternatively, the initiator name can be obtained from the VRM Configurator or the Web interface of a device.

37. Click Add to create the initiator group.

5.5 Creating LUNs

38. Calculate the size for each LUN.

In the navigation panel, select **Volumes** > **Manage**. Here, the available size of the volume is displayed. Divide that value by 16 to get the size of each individual LUN.

NOTICE!

Each storage system needs a minimum of 16 LUNs to provide the best performance. A total of 16 LUNs is considered best practice.

(i)

If you already know that you will add additional storage shelves, you may consider to create less than 16 LUNs here, as additional LUNs will be created for the additional volumes. In that case, divide the size available for the volume by the number of LUNs you plan to create for the volume.

Example: For a total of four volumes you might want to create four LUNs for each volume, giving you a total of 16 LUNs.

The following procedure must be carried out for each LUN to be created.

39. In the navigation panel, select LUNs > Wizard.

Click Next on the LUN Wizard welcome screen.

http://192.168.0.10 - LUN Wizard for DSA-N28	50 - Microsoft Internet Explorer 🔳 🗖 🔀
LUN Wizard: Specify LUN Paramet	ers
Path: The full path to the LUN, for example / vol/luns/lunOne . The LUN must be created in the root directory of a volume or a qtree.	/vol/vol0/lun0
Size: The size of the LUN.	474 GB (GigaBytes) 💙 🥐
LUN Protocol Type: Select the multiprotocol type for the LUN.	Linux 🔹 🕐
Space-reserved: If checked, indicates that the LUN should be space-reserved.	I space-reserved [®]
Description: An optional description of the LUN.	0
< Back Cancel	Next >
2	Internet

40. Path: Enter /vol/vol0/lun1.

The first part of this path is always **vol**, the second part is the name of your volume (**vol0**), the third part is the name of your LUN (change this for all further LUNs you are creating).

Example: Enter /vol/vol0/lun2, /vol/vol0/lun3, /vol/vol0/lun4 ... for further LUNs.

- 41. **Size**: Enter the size calculated for your LUNs (available size of the volume divided by the number of LUNs to be created for this volume).
- 42. LUN Protocol Type: Select Linux.
- 43. Leave Space-reserved enabled and leave Description blank. Click Next.
- 44. On the Add Initiator Groups screen, click Add Group.
- 45. Select Use existing initiator group. Click Next.
- 46. Select the VRM_UNITIGROUPO that you have created before. Click Next.

47. On the **Add Initiator Groups** screen, click **Next**.

🗿 http://192.168.0.10 - LUN Wizard for DSA-N2B50 - Microsoft Internet Explorer 🔳 🔲 🔀				
L LIN Wizard: Add Initiator Groups				
The list below shows the initiator groups that the LUN will be mapped to after the wizard creates it. To add groups to the list, click on the Add Group button. Otherwise, click on the Next button to continue.				
Initiator Group	Operations			
VRM_UNITIGROUP0	<u>remove</u>			
VRM_UNITIGROUP0 remove Add Group Add Group Seck Cancel Next >				
e i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	🤝 Internet			

- 48. **LUN ID**: Leave this field blank. The lowest available ID will be used automatically. Click **Next**.
- 49. The changes are summarized on the **LUN Wizard: Commit Changes** screen. Click **Commit** to create the LUN.

If the LUN has been created successfully, a **Success!** screen will display.

- 50. Use the **LUN Wizard** to create all 16 (or the desired number of) LUNs. The system configuration is now done.
- 51. It is recommended to change the password for the Web interface access. In the navigation panel, select **Security** > **Change Password**.
- 52. If no further storage is to be added, disconnect your computer from the storage system. Connect the storage system to the CCTV network by plugging the network cable (not supplied) into the network port, labeled **e0a**.

6

Adding Storage

Storage shelves can be added to the DSA-N2B20 and the DSA-N2B50 system. Each expansion unit comes with 14 disks, 750 GB each.

Shelves are daisy-chained in a so-called loop. The first shelf added to a storage system is directly connected to the storage system. Each following shelf is connected to the last shelf in the existing loop, with a maximum of six shelves in one loop for the DSA-N2B50 and a maximum of four shelves for the DSA-N2B20.



6.1 Installing a Shelf

1. Physically install and secure the shelf onto support brackets and rack.

6.1.1 Setting the Shelf ID

Each shelf will have to have an ID. The shelf ID represents the position in the loop. The first shelf (which you attach directly to your storage system) has ID #1, the second shelf (attached to shelf number one) has ID #2 and so on.

2. Set the correct Shelf ID by pressing the + or – button at the back of the shelf, next to the ID display.

Note: Do not use identical IDs for different shelves.



6.1.2 Connecting the Power Supplies

 If not already done, power on the base unit. On the shelf, connect both power supplies and switch them on. Wait 30 seconds to allow the shelf to initialize. Make sure that the shelf displays the correct shelf ID on the front display before you continue.

6.1.3 Connecting the Shelf

- 1. Connect the shelves using the supplied cables.
 - For the *first* shelf:

Insert an SFP into the **In** port of each of the two I/O modules at the back of the shelf to convert them to optical ports, making sure that the SFP has the correct position before inserting it.



Plug in one end of the optical cable to the ${\bf ln}$ port of the lower I/O module on your shelf.

Plug the other end into the Fibre Channel (FC) port labeled **0a** on the storage controller.

Connect one end of the second optical cable into the ${\bf ln}$ port of the upper I/O module of your shelf.

Connect the other end to the second FC port on your storage system, labeled **Ob**.

- For additional shelves:

Insert an SFP into the **In** port of each of the two I/O modules at the back of the shelf to convert them to optical ports, making sure that the SFP has the correct position before inserting it. Repeat this for the **Out** port of the last shelf in your existing loop. Connect one end of the SFP-SFP cable to the **In** port of the upper I/O module in your new disk shelf.

Connect the other end to the **Out** port of the upper I/O module of the last shelf in your existing loop.

Connect one end of the SFP-SFP cable to the ${\bf ln}$ port of the lower I/O module in your new disk shelf.

Connect the other end to the **Out** port of the lower I/O module of the last shelf in your existing loop.

NOTICE!

It might take up to 60 seconds for the storage system to recognize the new disks. The procedure as described above is only valid for new disk shelves. If you want to assign disk shelves that have already been used by a different storage controller, please refer to the original NetApp documentation.

- 5. Log in to the FilerView administration interface as described in *Section 5 Configuration through the Web Interface*, page 8.
- 6. In the navigation panel, select **Storage** > **Disks** > **Manage** and verify that the system shows the new disks, i.e. **View Type** is set to **Spare Disks**.



NOTICE!

If you are using the VRM Video Recording Manager application (Version 1.5 or higher), all further settings are made through VRM.

If you use the digital storage systems for direct recording, continue with the following steps.

6.1.4 Adding New Volumes

- 7. In the navigation panel, select **Volumes** > **Add**.
 - Click Next in the welcome screen of the Volume Wizard.
- 8. Volume Type Selection: Set to Traditional. Click Next.

9. Volume Parameters:

Volume Name: Enter a name for the new volume. The name should consist of the word **vol** and the ID of the disk shelf you just added (e.g. the volume for the first shelf you are adding to your storage system will be **vol1**, the volume for the second shelf will be called **vol2** and so on).

Leave the second and third parameter to their default value and enable **Double Parity**. Click **Next**.

http://10.10.10.10 - DSA-N2B20: Volume Wizard - Micro	soft Internet Explorer		X
Volume Wizard - Volume Parameters			~
Volume Name: Enter a name for the new volume.	vol1	?	
Language: Select the language to use on this volume.	POSIX	v ?	
UTF-8: Select to make language of this volume UTF-8 encoded.	UTF-8 🤊		
Double Parity: Select to enable double parity on this volume. Enabling this option requires an extra disk per RAID group.	Double Parity		
< Back Cancel 1	Vext >		
			v
ê	🤮 Internet		

- 10. RAID Group Size: Set to 14. Click Next.
- 11. Disk Selection: Set to Automatic. Click Next.
- 12. Disk Type: Select Any Type. Click Next.
- 13. Disk Size: Select Any Size. Click Next.
- 14. Number of Disks: Select the maximum value available. Click Next.
- 15. The changes are summarized on the **Commit** screen.

Click **Commit** to apply the new settings.

By default, one disk is left as a spare disk. If no spare disk is needed, this disk can be added to the volume manually. To do so, please continue with step 16. If you would like to keep the spare disk, please continue with step 20.

- 16. In the navigation panel, select **Filer > Use Command Line**.
- 17. Enter **vol add vol1 1** (... vol add vol**2** 1 ... vol add vol**3** 1 ... and so on, depending on the volume you are setting up).
- A warning displays. Enter y (yes) to confirm the action.
 A message confirms that the disk has been added.
- 19. Click **Disconnect** to disconnect from the command line console.
- 20. In the navigation panel, select Volumes > Manage.
- 21. Click the name of the new volume to open the Volume Properties.
- 22. Click **Modify** to change the properties. The **Modify Volume Wizard** displays.
- 23. Volume: Verify that the newly created volume is selected. Click Next.

24. On the following two screens, click **Next** and leave all options to their default value. On the third screen (**Other**), uncheck **Access Time**.

http://10.10.10.10 - FAS2050: Modify Volume Wizard - Microsoft	Internet Expl	
Modify Volume Wizard - Other		~
Minimal Read Ahead: Select to enable minimal read ahead, un-select for aggressive read ahead.	🗆 Minimal 🕐	
Update Access Time: Select to update the access time on an inode when the file is read.	🔲 Access Time 🕐	
< Back Cancel Next >		
		~
E Done	🥥 Internet	

- 25. The changes are summarized on the **Commit** screen. Click **Commit** to apply the new settings.
- 26. In the navigation panel, select **Volumes** > **Snapshots** > **Configure**. Choose the newly created volume from the drop-down list.

http://10.68.41.40 · 2050	a: FilerView - Mozilla Firefox	
-	FilerView®	
Er.		
Network Appliance*		Search Abo
📼 2050a 🕞 🕐	Configure Snapshots @	
• Filer (?)	Volumes → Snapshots → Configure	
 Volumes □= ⑦ Add Manage 	Volume: Select the volume for which snapshots will be configured. Only online volumes are displayed.	vol1 💌 🕐
• Otrees Thing	Snapshot Reserve: Enter the size of volume's snapshot reserve, a percentage between 0 and 100	20 % 🕐
Snapshots ⑦	Snapshot Directory Visible: Select to make the <i>snapshot</i> directory visible.	Directory 🕐
Configure	Scheduled Snapshots: Select to enable scheduled snapshots.	□Scheduled ®
Aggregates (2) Storage (2) Operations Manager (2)	 Number of Scheduled Snapshots to Keep: Enter the number of scheduled weekly, nightly, and hourly snapshots to keep. These snapshots are created only if Scheduled Snapshots is selected. 	0 Weekty 2 Nightly 6 Hourly
HTTP ① LUNs = ②	Hourly Snapshot Schedule: Select the times at which hourly snapshots will occur.	Ø
Enable/Disable		
Manage		
Add		
LUN ConfigCheck		
• Initiator Groups (?)		
• iSCSI 🕐		
Network ②	Select All - Unselect All	
 Security (2) Country Admin (2) 	Apply	
· Secure Admin (2)		

Click **Apply** to commit the change.

27. Repeat steps 7 to 26 for each volume you wish to add.

6.1.5 Creating LUNs

For each newly created volume, you must create at least one LUN, as previously created LUNs cannot not be reconfigured to use them for the new volume.



NOTICE!

The size of the LUNs for Bosch applications is limited to 2TB.

28. Create LUNs for the volume, as described in *Section 5.5 Creating LUNs*, page 14. Be sure to use the correct volume when setting the path for each LUN. Example: /vol/vol1/lun0

23

7 Monitoring and Maintenance



7.1.1

You can find more detailed documentation on

www.boschsecurity.com under Product Catalog > CCTV > IP Video > Disk Arrays.

7.1 Monitoring the System

Using the FilerView Monitor

The system should be monitored. An overall system status monitor is provided by the **FilerView** administration interface.

1. Connect to the FilerView interface as described in Section 5 Configuration through the Web Interface, page 8.

2. In the navigation panel, select **Real Time Status** > **Health Monitor**.

The overall Health Monitor opens in a new browser window.

🕙 http://10.10.	10.10 - DSA-S 🔳 🗖 🔀
\bigcirc	10.10.10.10
	The system's global A status is normal.
	< >
🔮 Ir	iternet

Keep this window open and check the status regularly.

3. In the navigation panel, select **Real Time Status** > **Filer At-A-Glance**. Data traffic, CPU load etc. are visualized here.

7.1.2 Logs and Reports

- 1. Connect to the FilerView interface as described in Section 5 Configuration through the Web Interface, page 8.
- In the navigation panel, select Filer > Report.
 A general report on the system displays.
- In the navigation panel, select Filer > Syslog Messages. The log file for all system messages displays.
- In the navigation panel, select Network > Report.
 Information on the network displays.
- In the navigation panel, select LUNs > iSCSI > Report. The iSCSI status and further information displays.

7.2 Maintenance

7.2.1 Disk Replacement DSA-S5B50

Follow these steps to replace a disk:

- 1. Remove the new disk drive from the antistatic bag.
- 2. Determine the disk drive to be replaced, see Section 7.5.1 DSA-S5B50, page 30.
- 3. Press the release latch of the drive. Swing the drive bay cover to the right until it is at a right angle to the chassis.



4. Slide the entire assembly toward you in order to pull it out of the drive bay.



- 5. Press the release latch of the new replacement drive. Swing the drive bay cover to the right until it is at a right angle to the chassis.
- 6. Slide in the drive carrier and close the drive bay cover. The drive LED should be lit **green** now.

7.2.2 Disk Replacement DSA-N2B20 / DSA-N2B50

Follow these steps to replace a disk:

- 1. Determine the disk drive to be replaced, see *Section 7.5.2 DSA-N2B20 / DSA-N2B50*, page 30.
- 2. Grasp and pinch the latch.



3. Rotate the handle to extract the disk.



4. Support the bottom of the drive to remove it.



5. Reverse these steps to replace the hard disk. The drive LED should be lit **green** now.

7.2.3 Replacement of Modules

Documentation on the replacement of other modules is available on **www.boschsecurity.com** under **Product Catalog** > **CCTV** > **IP Video** > **Disk Arrays**. Refer to these documents:

- Replacing CF Card.pdf
- Replacing Controller Module.pdf
- Replacing DIMMS.pdf
- Replacing NVMEM Battery.pdf
- Replacing PCI Card.pdf
- Replacing Power Supply.pdf
- Replacing System Chassis.pdf

7.3 Hardware Troubleshooting

7.3.1 DSA-S5B50

LEDs on front side, left:



Drive Status Indicator

If the **Power Indicator** is not lit green, the system has no power.

• Check the cables and press the power button.

If the Ethernet Link LED is not lit, no network connection is established.

- 1. Check if the cable is plugged in at both ends.
- 2. Check the cable and, if neccessary, replace it.

If the **Ethernet Activity LED** is blinking, data is currently being transferred.

Each disk has a **Drive Status Indicator LED** to the left-hand side. If it is lit **amber**, a drive fault is indicated.

The drive status indicator LED on the right-hand side may show the following codes:

LED Code	Indications
00	Booting firmware
12	Booting ONTAP
11	ONTAP boot complete
E1	DHCP failed on both network ports
E2	Battery too low
E3	Battery broken
Each <i>nower supply</i> has two I EDs on the rear side	

- A green blinking LED indicates that the power supply is on stand-by voltage.

- An **amber** lit LED indicates a power supply fault.

On the rear side, two LEDs are found next to each Ethernet port. If only one LED is lit, no connection is established.

If the LED on the NVRAM card is lit amber, a fault is indicated.

7.3.2 DSA-N2B20 / DSA-N2B50

LEDs on front side, right:



If the **Power LED** is not lit green, the system has no power.

• Check the cables and switch the system on.

If the Fault LED is lit amber, the system is halted, or an error is indicated.

A blinking **Controller LED** indicates activity of the controller.

A corresponding **Power LED** and a **Fault LED** are also located on the rear side of the system. On the rear side, next to the Ethernet ports, two fault-indicating LEDs can be found.



NVRAM Battery Controller Module Status

- **NVRAM Battery LED** blinking **green**: NVRAM is in battery-backed standby-state (contains data not written to disk yet).
- **Controller Module Status LED** lit **amber**: System is initializing or system fault.

7.3.3 Disk Shelves

There is a corresponding LED next to each SFP slot on the rear side of the shelf:

- LED lit green:
 SFP connection.
- LED not lit:

No SFP connection. Check all cable connections and ensure all plugs are properly fitted.

Power Fan LED AC LED PSU status normal

If either the **Fan LED** or the **Power LED** are lit **amber**, the power supply unit must be replaced. At the front side of each disk drive, there are two LEDs.

- If **no** LED is lit, the drive is not recognized. Reinsert the drive.
- If one LED is lit **amber**, a fault is indicated. The drive must be replaced.

There are four LEDs on the power supply unit on the rear side of each shelf.

7.4 Software Update

NOTICE!

Only Bosch certified software can be used.



NOTICE!

To update the software, the system must reboot. During this process, no data can be written to the system.

i

NOTICE!

If you are not using VRM, you need a program that functions as a Web server. For example, you can use **AIDeX Mini-Webserver** which can be downloaded from http://www.aidex.de/software/webserver/.

- 1. Upload the new software to a Web server
 - If you are using VRM, place the file that contains the new version in
 C:\Program Files\Bosch\Video Recording Manager\VRM Server\web on your VRM Server.
 - If you are not using VRM, start a Web server tool, for example MiniWebServer.exe, select a root directory and copy the new software version into this root directory.
 Example screen:

🖬 AlD'eX Mini-Webserver (Freeware, Version 1.1	early Release 3, 12.05.2003)	
Datei Root Limit Ansicht IP-Adresse Info		
port 80 neuen Port starten	Directory-Listing edit	<u>www.aidex.de/news</u> <u>www.aidex.de/links</u>
Root C:\WebRoot\		Ordner wählen
IP + Port als URL http://10.68.41.29/		IP ermitteln
08-22 13:22:59	Server gestartet an Port	~
08-22 13:23:10	Root C:\WebRoot\	
×		2
Server gestartet an Port 80		1.

 Download and install the new version on the storage controller hard disks: Connect to the console of the storage device. To connect to the console, select Filer > Use Command Line in the navigation panel of the FilerView administration interface.

If you are using **VRM**:

On the console, enter
software install http://username:password@<VRM Server IP>/
<Filename>

Replace <**username**> and <**password**> with the login information of your VRM server. Replace <**VRM Server IP**> with the IP address of your VRM server and <**Filename**> with the name of the file that contains the new version. Wait a few minutes for the installation to complete.

- If you are using MiniWebServer.exe:
 On the console, enter software install http://<MiniWebServer>/<filename> and replace <filename> with the name of the software update file.
 Wait until the success message displays: Installation of setup.exe-7.xxx_e.exe completed.
- Download the new software to the CF card: On the console, enter: download.

Wait until the success message displays: Operator requested download completed.

- 4. On the console, enter: **halt**.
 - The system reboots and stops at the bootloader.

Note that no data can be written on the disks while the system is rebooting.

- 5. If a new mainboard firmware comes with the release (check the release notes), on the console, at the prompt **LOADER>**, enter **update_flash**.
- 6. If a new BMC firmware comes with the release (check the release notes), on the console, at the prompt **LOADER>**, enter **update_bmc**.
- On the console, enter: bye.
 The system reboots with the new software.

7.5 Disk Identification

7.5.1 DSA-S5B50

The disk drives are numbered from 0 to 11:



7.5.2

DSA-N2B20 / DSA-N2B50



7.5.3

Disk Shelf



Disk JI - Shalf ID *

8 Technical Data

For more detailed information, please refer to the data sheets with the latest information available on

www.boschsecurity.com under Product Catalog > CCTV > IP Video > Disk Arrays.

8.1 Technical Specifications DSA-S5B50

8.1.1 Electrical Requirements

AC power/Max current	100 V to 120 VAC, 9 A
	200 to 240 VAC, 4.5 A
Frequency	50/60 Hz
Heat dissipation BTU/h	1706 BTU, fully loaded

8.1.2 System Hardware Specifications

2U, 19"-rack-mountable	
Dual redundant, hot pluggable	
Up to 12: 1 TB SATA-II drives	
12 TB	
2048 MB	
256 MB–protects "in flight" transactions	
for 3 days in the event of a power	
loss	
2 x 10/100/1000 Gigabit Ethernet,	
copper	

8.1.3 Mechanical

Height	89 mm (2 U) (3.5 in (2 U))
Width	447 mm (17.6 in)
Depth	508 mm (20 in)
Weight	35.8 kg (52 lb), fully loaded

8.1.4 Space Requirements

Front clearance	268 mm (10.55 in)
Rear clearance	414 mm (16.3 in)

8.1.5 Environmental

Temperature	
 operating range 	0 °C to +40 °C (+32 °F to +104 °F)
• storage range	-10 °C to +65 °C (-40 °F to +149 °F)
Relative humidity	
• operating range	20 to 85%, non-condensing
• storage range	20 to 95%, non-condensing
Operating acoustic noise	66 dBA at 1 m at +23 °C

8.2 Technical Specifications DSA-N2B20

8.2.1 Electrical Requirements – One Controller Module

Input voltage: 100 to 120V	Worst case	System
input voltage. 100 to 120V	Worst case,	oysteni,
	single PSU	two PSUs
 input current measured 	3.37 A	3.22 A
 input power measured 	332 W	316 W
 thermal dissipation 	1133 BTU/hr	1077 BTU/hr
Input voltage: 200 to 240V	Worst case,	System,
	single PSU	two PSUs
 input current measured 	1.69 A	1.66 A
• input power measured	327 W	305 W
 thermal dissipation 	1114 BTU/hr	1039 BTU/hr
Input power frequency	50 to 60 Hz	50 to 60 Hz

8.2.2 System Hardware Specifications

Chassis	2U, 19" rack-mountable
Power supplies	Dual redundant, hot pluggable
Max disk drives	12 x 750 GB SATA II drives
Max raw Capacity	9 TB
DDR2 memory (System RAM)	1024 MB
Nonvolatile SDRAM (NVRAM)	256 MB - protects "in flight" transactions
	for 3 days in the event of a power loss.
Integrated I/O	2 Ethernet 10/100/1000 Copper
Remote management (via LAN)	Yes

8.2.3 Mechanical

Dimensions (H x W x D)	89 x 447 x 572 mm
	(3.5 x 17.6 x 22.5 in)
Weight	27.215 kg (60 lb) full

8.2.4 Space Requirements

Front-cooling	152 mm (6 in)
Rear-cooling	305 mm (12 in)
Front of chassis-maintenance	762 mm (30 in)
Rear of chassis-maintenance	915 mm (36 in)

8.2.5 Environmental

Operating temperature	+10 °C to +40 °C (+50 °F to +104 °F)
Nonoperating temperature	-40 °C to +60 °C (-40 °F to +140 °F)
Relative humidity	20 to 80% noncondensing
Acoustic level	N/A

8.3 Technical Specifications DSA-N2B50

8.3.1 Electrical Requirements – One Controller Module

Input voltage: 100 to 120V	Worst case,	System,
	single PSU	two PSUs
 input current measured 	5.07 A	4.51 A
• input power measured	504 W	439 W
thermal dissipation	1718 BTU/hr	1497 BTU/hr
Input voltage: 200 to 240V	Worst case,	System,
	single PSU	two PSUs
• input current measured	2.46 A	2.40 A
• input power measured	474 W	447 W
 thermal dissipation 	1617 BTU/hr	1523 BTU/hr
Input power frequency	50 to 60 Hz	50 to 60 Hz

8.3.2 System Hardware Specifications

Chassis	4U, 19" rack-mountable
Power supplies	Dual redundant, hot pluggable
Max disk drives	20 x 750 GB SATA II drives
Max raw Capacity	15 TB
DDR2 memory (System RAM)	2048 MB
Nonvolatile SDRAM (NVRAM)	256 MB - protects "in flight" transactions
	for 3 days in the event of a power loss.
Integrated I/O	2 Ethernet 10/100/1000 Copper
Remote management (via LAN)	Yes

8.3.3 Mechanical

Dimensions (H x W x D)	175 x 447 x 572 mm
	(6.9 x 17.6 x 22.5 in)
Weight	49.895 kg (110 lb)

8.3.4 Space Requirements

Front-cooling	152 mm (6 in)
Rear-cooling	305 mm (12 in)
Front of chassis-maintenance	762 mm (30 in)
Rear of chassis-maintenance	914 mm (36 in)

8.3.5 Environmental

Operating temperature	+10 °C to +40 °C (+50 °F to +104 °F)
Nonoperating temperature	-40 °C to +60 °C (-40 °F to +140 °F)
Relative humidity	20 to 80% noncondensing
Acoustic level	66 dBA at +23 °C
	6.6 bels at +23 °C

8.4 Technical Specifications Disk Shelf Expansion Unit – DSX-N2X00-14AT

8.4.1 Electrical Requirements

Input voltage: 100 to 120V	Worst case,	System,
	single PSU	two PSUs
 input current measured 	3.42 A	3.22 A
 input power measured 	341 W	321 W
 thermal dissipation 	1163 BTU/hr	1095 BTU/hr
Input voltage: 200 to 240V	Worst case,	System,
	single PSU	two PSUs
 input current measured 	1.63 A	1.60 A
 input power measured 	323 W	309 W
 thermal dissipation 	1103 BTU/hr	1054 BTU/hr
Input power frequency	50 to 60 Hz	50 to 60 Hz

8.4.2 System Hardware Specifications

Chassis	3U, 19" rack-mountable
Power supplies	Dual redundant, hot pluggable
Max disk drives	14 x 750 GB SATA II drives
Max raw Capacity	10.5 TB
Shelf connectivity	Fibre Channel:
	• copper
	• fiber

8.4.3 Mechanical

Dimensions (H x W x D)	113 x 447 x 552 mm (5.25 x 17.6 x 22 in)
Weight	30.8 kg (68 lb), fully loaded

8.4.4 Space Requirements

Front-cooling	153 mm (6 in)
Rear-cooling	305 mm (12 in)
Front of chassis-maintenance	559 mm (25 in)
Rear of chassis-maintenance	305 mm (12 in)

8.4.5 Environmental

Operating temperature	+5 °C to +40 °C (+41 °F to +104 °F)
Nonoperating temperature	-40 °C to +60 °C (-40 °F to +140 °F)
Relative humidity	20 to 80% noncondensing
Acoustic level	58 dBA at +23 °C

9

Trademarks

Java is a trademark of Sun Microsystems. Data ONTAP and RAID-DP are trademarks of NetApp.

Download from Www.Somanuals.com. All Manuals Search And Download.

Bosch Security Systems

 Robert-Koch-Straße 100

 D-85521 Ottobrunn

 Germany

 Telefon
 089 6290-0

 Fax
 089 6290-1020

 www.boschsecurity.com

© Bosch Security Systems, 2008

Free Manuals Download Website <u>http://myh66.com</u> <u>http://usermanuals.us</u> <u>http://www.somanuals.com</u> <u>http://www.4manuals.cc</u> <u>http://www.4manuals.cc</u> <u>http://www.4manuals.cc</u> <u>http://www.4manuals.com</u> <u>http://www.404manual.com</u> <u>http://www.luxmanual.com</u> <u>http://aubethermostatmanual.com</u> Golf course search by state

http://golfingnear.com Email search by domain

http://emailbydomain.com Auto manuals search

http://auto.somanuals.com TV manuals search

http://tv.somanuals.com